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Penally House

SS116993       OS 25” 2nd edition XLI.15    Penally,Tenby

1886      Clement John Williams JP was mayor of Tenby seven times.  He was the son of John Alfred Williams, manufacturer and merchant from the midlands. Educated at King Edward School, Birmingham, he married Katherine, daughter of  Thomas Waddell of Egbaston. 

1890  Electricity for lighting installed*.

1891  Electricity in the church supplied by the acetylene(?) plant at Penally House.

1897  High sheriff..          

1920’s  Morgan, millionaire to whom the father of Harry Duffy came as chauffeur/mechanic. Said to have been very wealthy with racehorses, luxury yacht, etc employing fifteen gardeners.

At some point the house was enlarged a third gable-end appearing at the east side of the south front where the conservatory stood. (cf Charles Smith Allen photograph with more recent ones) The outer walls of the original house are marked by a series of columns which are reflected in the coach house; a decorative finial survives on the NE corner. The main entrance porch has a decorative arched ceiling with central rose . The inner hall or ante-room is beautiful with an alcove opposite the door picked out with fine white columnar  edging.

Hotel and holiday accommodation developments since 1970’s with loss of some interesting features.

Owners: Mr and Mrs John Toler.

Survey 6th April 1999.

(See enlarged map 1. Scale approx 50” to the mile. 1908)

The site is best entered from the recently modernised Lodge at the south end of the carriage drive. (1). There was another (Malvern) Lodge (20) at the western boundary, now a substantial house; its drive went along the southern edge of field 458, went through the enclosure 456 to the west of the house, which appears to have been a kitchen garden, and then turned northwards between stone pillars and down a slope towards the coach-house at the NW corner of the site. Enclosure 456 is now a clean, hedged field with no trace of its former use.

An elaborate cast iron gate pillar and its half-gate stands to the left. (2 and 3). It may read  Foster & Co Ltd (?)  Liverpool around the handle. The owner has been told by a former occupant that the other pillar and gate were broken and buried when land was buldozed  for the house to the right. There is a low stone wall flanking the drive to the right matched by a retaining wall of the same height on the left; the bank has trees and (Ponticum?) rhododendrons in a narrow belt. (4). On the right hand side is a wrought iron hand gate through the wall. (4a).

A dressed stone pillar on the left (5) indicates the entrance to the garden area. The right hand pillar has disappeared except perhaps for some large cut stones which now form a low wall on the right above which is a Aucuba japonica hedge, (6), about 30m long, ending with a large beech, another of which is a little way up the bank to the left. To the left, on this slightly curved stretch of drive is a gazebo, (7), circular in plan, set half way back into the bank. The semi-circular stone back wall is faced with some layers of large pebble and an a larger area of inset beach shells. Tubular metal pillars are galvanised and support a timber roof (the wood does not look so old) covered with (again galvanised?) metal sheets, each a sector of a circle with a small raised overlap. No seat survives but the view would today be largely interrupted by the aucuba hedge. A modern statuette of a Grecian goddess now occupies the building.

The steeply sloping wooded area to the left before the house, and continuing beyond it, is terraced with several levels, low stone retaining walls and flights of steps. (8). Towards the far end there is a gateway into the lane above; it has a wrought iron half-gate and a cast iron central pillar but no real steps. (9).

After passing the house (10) the land slopes gently down to the north and steeply to the east.

A modern bungalow on the left is follwed by  a house, called nowadays “The Coach -house”, facing the impressive stable / coach-house block; (11) behind this is a small yard, now part of a domestic dwelling, with the remains (base only) of a heated greenhouse. Access was not possible though there is a photograph, taken in 1998, fron the other side of the wall. (12). The main drive from the village, having climbed northwards along the eastern boundary, passing a pointed-arched doorway (13) and a well (15) enters the premises in the NE corner (14) and curves sharply round to the stable block / coach house.

There is a public footpath along the outside of the northern wall from which the north side of the house can be seen. (16).

Through the pointed-arched pedestrian entrance aforementioned is a steeply climbing path up towards the house.

As stated above the conservatory at the SW corner of the house, shown on the 1908 map and on the C.S. Allen photograph was replaced by the new “wing” earlier this century. The same Allen photograph shows flower beds edged with stones to the east of the house with a gravelled footpath in front of the balustade on each side of the steps down from the french window. The more recent photograph shows the beds largely in place, grassed over with a few shrubs in them. The balustrade is still intact. Later (in the 1970’s ?) a philistine owner buldozed away these Victorian beds, together with path and balustrades; this to make a car park, thankfully leaving the stone steps and some small bits and pieces of stonework, which, though untidy do hint at what was. (18 and 19).          

*From Pembrokeshire Life  February 2003:

Let there be light

From the Tenby Observer January 1890

On New Year’s Eve the village of Penally  was in an unwonted state of excitement consequent on Mr Clement J Williams, who recently purchased Penally House, having introduced the electric light for illuminating purposes in his house.

A large bonfire was lighted on the hill above Penally House, cannon boomed and the children and poor people were entertained in the village school.

The motive power for the electric light is provided by a five horse-power petroleum engine, the first of its kind fitted up in this country..
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House, lodge, carriage drive and coach house. High wall along eastern and northern boundary. Gazebo. Stone terraces, walls etc. Cast iron gate and pillar, lamp base and smaller gateways. Trees and shrubs.

